
1 
 

 

  
 

Special Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Meeting to be held at the 

Casitas Board Room 
Off the main lobby 
1055 Ventura Ave. 

Oak View, CA 93022 
November 22, 2017 @ 9:30 A.M. 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
3. General Manager comments. 
 
4. Board of Director comments.   
 
5. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 
6. Consent Agenda 
  

a. Minutes from the November 8, 2017 meeting. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda. 
 
7. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 11/02/17 - 

11/15/17. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving report. 
 
 



2 

8. Presentation of the draft Invasive Mussel Rapid Response Plan.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion Approving the Plan 

9. Presentation of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area Sewer Feasibility Study.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to Staff 

10. Resolution awarding a contract for District Office Lighting Replacement
Specification 17-396 to Oilfield Electric in the amount of $103,900.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 

11. Recommend authorization of up to $100,000 in additional asphalt Paving 
Work during fiscal year 2017-2018.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Motion approving recommendation 

12. Adopt resolution repealing Resolution 90-5 and adopting a new Records
Retention and Destruction Policy and Retention Schedule.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 

13. Information Items:

a. Lake Casitas Recreation Area Report for September.
b. Recreation Committee Minutes.
c. Quagga Mussel Committee Minutes.
d. Executive Committee Minutes.
e. Personnel Committee Minutes.
f. Finance Committee Minutes.
g. Investment Report.

14. Adjournment.

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in
this meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-
2251, ext. 113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a)).



1 
 

  
 

 
Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 

Board Meeting Held 
November 8, 2017 

 
A meeting of the Board of Directors was held November 8, 2017 at the Casitas 
Municipal Water District located at 1055 Ventura Ave. in Oak View, California. 
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. President Baggerly led the group in 
the flag salute. 
 
 
1. Roll Call 
 

Directors Baggerly, Word, Hicks, Bergen and Kaiser were present. Also 
present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the 
Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were four staff members and four 
members of the public in attendance.   
 
2. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

None 
     
3. General Manager comments. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum reported that the AWA bus tour would be at the Casitas 
Dam at approximately 2:30.  He also mentioned the Employee Appreciation 
lunch on the same day at the Oak View Resource Center and applauded our 
employees for their efforts this last year with the acquisition of the Ojai system.  
We have decided to close the office at 11:30 tomorrow to allow the entire 
Administration staff to join us at the appreciation luncheon.   
 

We are still seeing numerous leaks in the Ojai system and we are moving 
through the asphalt repair budget quickly.  The rest of our system is performing 
well. The Ojai customers received their first Casitas bill last week and we have 
incorporated autopay into the rest of the district.  Staff is readying the canal and 
Robles Diversion in hope that we operate Robles in the coming months. 
 
4. Board of Director comments.   
 

President Baggerly jokingly reported that he has no business ties to 
Russia or the Ukraine or anywhere. 

 



2 
 

5. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

Director Word reported that he attended the AWA board meeting and the 
water issues committee will meet on 21st on the cost of water. They are looking 
for an additional place to meet as they now have more than 35 people attend that 
meeting.  Ron Merckling received some kudos for his participation and 
contribution to the symposium.  The next water wise breakfast is next Thursday 
where Steve Wickstrum will be making a presentation.  The water systems lunch 
and educational program has grown to over 140.   
 

Director Baggerly reported attending the VRWC meeting. The Resource 
Conservation District funding will be gone in six months.  Tully Clifford is working 
for the City of Ventura and gave a presentation on the Stanley Avenue 
reconfiguration alternatives.  Director Bergen reported she was also at the 
meeting. 
 
6. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
  

a. Minutes from the October 25, 2017 meeting. 
 
 Director Bergen had an email from Renee Roth who was concerned that 
her comments came across as too strong but she is supportive of what Casitas is 
doing.  Director Bergen stated the minutes sound strong but no changes were 
recommend.  
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Bergen, the 
Consent Agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 10/19/17 - 

11/01/17.        APPROVED 
 
 Director Bergen questioned the archeological consulting with Mr. 
Wickstrum explaining that it for the work that was done for the Ojai System at 
Mallory and Eucalyptus, as it is a requirement in the City of Ojai.   
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen, the 
Accounts Payable Report was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 



3 
 

8. Recommend approval of the Five Year Agreement with Rotary Club of 
Ojai West Foundation for the Ojai Wine Festival to be held at Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area 2018 – 2022.   Directed back to staff  

 
   
 The board expressed a number of concerns regarding the potential for 
liability and the level of insurance we are requiring including requests for 
additional insurance coverages to be provided by the event sponsor and also 
potentially from vendors.  The board also expressed concern over the change to 
have staff oversee the event and requested that the board be inserted back into 
that monitoring role in the agreement.  Director Baggerly requested that in the 
future with agreements where there are a number of changes that they be 
provided in legislative format so they can see the modifications. Another concern 
was with the beginning time being moved to 11:30 and not having the definite 
end time of 5:00 p.m.  The board also expressed concerns about having a 
designated driver program to ensure attendees get home safe, concerns 
regarding the crossing guard training and the storage that is provided.   
 

  Bob Daddi spoke to the board regarding insurance requirements and 
suggested a scaled approach on events based on projected attendance.  He 
echoed the idea that individual vendors provide a certificate of insurance listing 
the district as additionally insured.  He expressed that 2 million in coverage in 
inadequate for this type of event.  He also suggested having some sort of self-
testing available as a first line of defense.  
 

The board also expressed concern over how we move forward as the City 
of Ventura had to shut down their street fairs because they made is so difficult to 
operate.   
 
9. Recommend approval of a Purchase Order to J & H Engineering General 

Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $30,650 for pavement repair. 
          APPROVED 
   
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Kaiser the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
10. Recommend approval of the salary range adjustment and job title 

revisions to create the position of Executive Administrator, HR and Risk 
Management.       APPROVED 

 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Word, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 



4 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
11. Information Items: 
 

a. Water Conservation October 2017 Update. 
b. Water Resources Committee Minutes. 
c. Personnel Committee Minutes. 
d. Water Consumption Report. 
e. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
f. Investment Report. 

 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen, the 
Information items were approved. 
 
12. Adjournment. 
 
 President Baggerly adjourned the meeting at 4:06 p.m.  
 
 
       _________________________ 
       Bill Hicks, Secretary 































1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE:  Draft Invasive Mussel Rapid Response Plan 

Date:   November 17, 2017 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the draft Invasive Mussel Rapid 
Response Plan (RRP) and direct staff to seek input to the plan by the regulatory agencies. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
For approximately ten years the district has been actively protecting Lake Casitas from the 
invasion of quagga and zebra mussels.  In 2008 the District implemented the Vessel 
Inspection and Quarantine Program and in 2015 the District contracted for the development 
of the Control and Vulnerability Study.  The Study recommended the creation of a RRP that 
can be engaged if there should be a discovery of mussels.  The Board of Directors requested 
that a RRP be developed and presented by staff. 
 
The draft RRP has been developed to be a part of the Casitas Emergency Response Plan 
(EAP).  The EAP incorporates a wide range of emergency events, response mechanisms that 
staff would follow, and communication tables that are common to all emergencies.  A 
discovery of mussels would be responded to as though it were an emergency and the RRP 
can be easily found in the EAP, instead of some other file. 
 
The RRP will be shared with the Department of Fish and Wildlife (DFW) and other regulatory 
agencies to receive additional input and clarification.  According to DFW, they are unaware of 
any agency having an RRP.  Casitas has found that Big Bear Municipal Water District has 
created an RRP and has shared their RRP with Casitas. 
 
The District has observed the spread of quagga mussels to nearby Lake Piru and has 
concerns regarding any further spread of the mussels to the Ventura River watershed.  The 
development of the RRP is motivating the effort to figure this situation out prior to it ever 
happening. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT  

INVASIVE MUSSEL RAPID RESPONSE PLAN 

November 2017 - DRAFT 

 

Summary:  

This Rapid Response Plan is the action to be taken should dreissenid mussels be discovered in Lake 
Casitas, despite the best efforts of all concerned.   The objective of the Rapid Response Plan is to provide 
immediate step by step action plan with protocols for notifications, containment, control and 
eradication.  The initial discovery and actions after verification will be managed as an emergency 
response through the establishment of an Incident Command Center (ICS) in compliance with National 
Incident Management System (NIMS).  Through the ICS, actions will be taken to facilitate enhanced 
monitoring and control measures, notifications and public information. 

In response to invasive mussels being found in the Colorado River system, Casitas Municipal Water 
District instituted an aggressive vessel quarantine program at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area in 2008. 
In 2015, vessel decontamination policies and procedures were adopted.   The Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area staff performs a prevention function through the application of the vessel quarantine program.  
The District’s Water Quality and Fisheries staff performs a monitoring function through routinely 
scheduled water quality monitoring and visual in-lake inspections at Lake Casitas and Matilija Reservoir 
to determine presence –absence of invasive mussels.   

In 2016, the District contracted RNT Consulting Inc. to review the existing Quagga/Zebra mussel 
prevention protocols as well as the operations of Lake Casitas Reservoir to further strengthen the 
existing efforts to prevent an introduction of invasive dreissenid mussels. The July 13, 2016 Lake Casitas 
Vulnerability Assessment for Invasive Mussels and Control and Management Plan for Invasive Mussels 
Prevention was adopted by the Casitas Board of Directors.  The information from that document has 
contributed the scientific information and methodology for this Rapid Response Plan.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INVASIVE MUSSEL RAPID RESPONSE PLAN 

FLOW CHART 

PREVENTION 

(LCRA) 

MONITORING 

(WQ/Fisheries) 

PRESENT? NO YES PRESENT? NO 

VERIFICATION ACTIONS 
(PAGE 3) 

WQ DEPT  
STAFF ACTIONS 

(PAGE 7) 

PRESENT
 

YES NO 

MANAGEMENT 
STAFF ACTIONS 

(PAGE 11) 

LCRA 
STAFF ACTIONS 

(PAGE 5) 

NOTIFY 
(PAGE 1) 

ESTABLISH INCIDENT 
COMMAND CENTER 

(PAGE 4) 

MANAGEMENT 

(GM OR DESIGNEEE) 

PRELIMINARY 
INCIDENT BRIEFING 

(PAGE 2) 

PREVENTION 

(LCRA) 

MONITORING 

(WQ/Fisheries) 



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

1 
 

 

 

I. NOTIFICATION ACTIONS 
 
Notification Contact numbers are listed in Appendix A 
 
A.  Suspicious or positive findings will be reported immediately by staff to the:  

� General Manager or General Manager Designee;  and 
� Park Services Manager;  and 
� California Department of Fish and Wildlife; and  
� USBR Reclamation  

o Detection Laboratory for Exotic Species (RDLES) 
o South Central Coast Area Office 

  
Additional CMWD Staff that need to be notified are: 
� CMWD Managers and Supervisors. 
� CMWD Staff that will need to respond to the event. 

 
B. The initial notification shall include a description of what is known at the time of the 

notification, including but not limited to: 

a. What was found? 
b. When was it found? 
c. Where was it found? 
d. How was it found? 
e. Why is it important? 
f. What has been done? 
g. What is being done now and by whom? 
h. Who has been contacted? 
i. Where can more information be found? 
j. What will be done in the future? 

 
C. The General Manager is responsible for the notification of the Board of Directors when: 

a. There is a positive discovery;  and 
b. A verification notice from the RDLES or CDFW laboratories;  and 
c. When the Response Team or Park Manager determines that actions require 

the immediate restriction of recreational use at Lake Casitas;  and 
d. The pertinent facts are compiled into a dated fact sheet that outlines what is 

known about the infestation and the response;  and  
e. Prior to public information being disseminated;  and 
f. The response is to be implemented. 

 
 

 



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

2 
 

II. PRELIMINARY INCIDENT BRIEFING 
 
The main function of the preliminary incident briefing is to provide initial coordination of 
verification actions and to ensure that all relevant staff members have an understanding of 
the status of the incident. The briefing will also provide a forum to discuss further actions 
and resource needs should the verification results return as ‘positive’ for invasive mussels.   
 
The briefing will be coordinated by management staff and will include the following staff 
members (or designees) as the Response Team: 
 
1. General Manager 
2. Water Quality Supervisor 
3. Park Services Manager 
4. Operations & Maintenance Manager 
5. Public Affairs-Resource Manager 
6. Treatment Plant Supervisor 
7. Other staff members or agencies as may be appropriate 

Upon conclusion of the briefing, the General Manager (or General Manager’s designee) will 
then assess the situation, make assignment in accordance with this plan and other actions 
deemed necessary, and coordinate with others such as the Board of Directors, California 
Department Fish & Wildlife, and others as deemed necessary. 

  



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

3 
 

 
 

III. VERIFICATION ACTIONS 
 
A. Verification – Verification will be undertaken by the District upon initial detection and 

may occur in either  or both of two methods: 
1. Visual identification that can be verified in the field by a CDFW biologist; or 
2. Suspect positive microscopic results gathered by Water Quality department to be 

verified by CFW and RDLES lab analysis.  
� Unless otherwise directed by the CDFW, the handling of live mussels shall be 

directed by the CDFW biologist. 
� Verification results are to be reported to the Water Quality Department, and 

immediately reported to the General Manager. 
� Subsequent to the verification results, the General Manager will brief the 

Response Team and inform the Board of Directors.  
 

B. Results Notification - The results of the verification actions will be received by the 
Water Quality Department as expediently as possible and will be immediately 
communicated to Management Staff.   
 

C.  Verification Response.  Once verification of presence is confirmed, the LCRA, Water 
Quality and Management staff will begin to conduct their respective assignments and 
tasks which are identified by the Plan, under the direction of the Incident Command 
Center structure. 

  

  



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

4 
 

IV. Establishing the Incident Command Center (ICC) 
 
A. Upon positive verification of invasive mussels, management staff will establish an (ICC) 

as provide in the District’s Emergency Response Plan.  
B. The purpose of the ICC is to: 

a. establish clear lines of communication;  
b. a central location for information gathering;  
c. facilitate decision making abilities and coordination; and  
d. provide information to the public; 
e. provide the tracking of financial aspects of the incident. 

C. The location of the ICC will be determined by the General Manager (or Designee). 
D. The ICC shall establish the following stages of response: 

a. Initial Response Stage 
b. Extended Response Stage 
c. Long Term Response Stage 

 
E. In each response stage the ICC will establish the level of: 

a. Communications and public outreach efforts; 
b. Coordination with regulatory and scientific agencies; 
c. Contracting of consultants and aquatic pesticide applicator; 
d. Monitoring and testing schedules; 
e. Schedules for aquatic pesticide applications; 
f. Frequency of meetings and information dissemination; 
g. Changes of public access to infected waters; 
h. Evaluation of the need for an ongoing response Team and, as appropriate, 

disband the incident organization and transition to communications and 
coordination via normal operating procedures. 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

5 
 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA STAFF ACTIONS 

If mussels are confirmed as present in Lake Casitas, all efforts will be made to contain the mussels and 
keep them from spreading to other water bodies. This will be accomplished by managing transportation 
pathways, and continuing to educate boaters, anglers, construction and maintenance equipment 
operators and performing watercraft inspection and watercraft decontamination as required. 

A. Public Outreach  

Notify stakeholders, customers, concession, other agencies, and the public in coordination with   
Public Affairs Manager. These methods are likely to include the following activities: 

� Widely distribute brochures, pamphlets, erect signage, install wayside exhibits, and 
distribute other educational information. 

� Install and maintain educational information where targeted visitors will see it. Given 
concerns with transportation pathways, signs and information literature will be placed at 
all marinas, launch ramps, parking lots around the lake. 

� Initiate local community outreach. Distribute educational information to local businesses. 
� Train project staff in the messages that should be conveyed internally and externally. 

 
B. Lake Quarantine Measures 

Work with law enforcement and management partners (state and local agencies, water districts), 
to contain the infestation through quarantine of watercraft, boater and angler education, 
watercraft inspection, and decontamination procedures which are already in place. 

LCRA Staff will: 

� Halt boat entries and order all vessels to be removed from the lake. 
� Set up temporary free parking/storage for vessels not moored and not in dry storage to     

encourage customers to keep the vessel on property.  
� Inspections may take place, but no additional entry or re-entry of vessels will occur until: 

 Invasive mussel eradication tactics are in place. 
 Quarantine procedures are on-line. 
 Appropriate decontamination measures are in place. These measures will 

include, if available, thermal decontamination and at a minimum ’Clean-Drain-
Dry’ decontamination for vessels wanting to leave lake.  

 Quarantine procedures will continue until deemed lifted by the General 
Manager (or Designee). 
 

C. Enhanced Inspections 
Expand rigorous boat inspections which are currently in place for watercraft entering the 
lake. Should mussel be introduced into Lake Casitas the current procedures used to control 
boating on Lake Casitas will be applied to boats leaving the reservoir as well as entering it. 
This offers a high level of assurance of containment as the inspection and decontamination 
of boats leaving the reservoir will prevent the spread of dreissenid to other water bodies in 
California and possibly to other states via the boating vector. 



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

6 
 

WATER QUALITY DEPARTMENT STAFF ACTIONS  

A. Permits.  Prior to a discovery of an infestation, obtain the appropriate permits for pre-
determined the application of aquatic pesticide product .  

SWRCB NPDES Permit for Animal Aquatic Invasive Species.   

SWRCB contact person: Gil Vasquez (916) 322-1400. $2062/FY year fee. 

B. Contract Applicators.  Prior to a discovery of an infestation, develop a list of consultants and 
applicator contractors that can be implemented during the incident and during in follow up 
actions.  

Applicator 1: Contract with Clean Lakes, Inc. 31320 Via Colinas, #114, Westlake Village, CA -
Thomas Moorhouse (Phone: 818-889-8691, Cell: 818-201-5982). 

Applicator 2: __________________________________________________________ 

C. Measure/Assess the Extent of the Infestation 
1. Delineate the mussel infestation as soon as the first mussel/veliger is found and 

verified.  Determine the epicenter and the area of the infestation.  
 

2. Contract underwater scuba professionals to examine submerged structures, such as 
large rocks, buoys and their chains and anchors, concrete/metal/wooden piers and 
pipes and hulls of moored boats moored to determine the locations of the mussel 
infestation.  

 
3. Assess the prevailing wind and water current patterns of Lake Casitas to delineate the 

infestation. 
 

4. Perform water quality sampling in either circumference or linear transects equidistant 
from the epicenter and proceed outward until mussels/veligers are no longer found.   
SCUBA divers may be used to search submerged surfaces and plankton hauls will be 
used to search for larvae. Particular attention will be paid at points on transects where 
prevailing winds/currents occur. 

 
5. Prioritize areas of the lake to treat upon findings. If in fact only one bay is infested, it 

may be possible to curtain off the mouth into the main body of water to contain the 
infestation.  



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

7 
 

D. Control 
1. Once containment of the mussel infestation is implemented and the size of the infestation 

assessed, a decision to implement an eradication protocol can be determined.  
 

2. Consult with other federal and state agencies regarding compliance or permitting needs 
for eradication. Current and pending laws or regulations that contain provisions regarding 
access to affected properties for containment, treatment, and control or any legal or 
regulatory concerns related to treatment will also be considered during the decision 
making. 

 
E. Eradication 

Chemical treatment is the only practical way to achieve eradication in Lake Casitas 
should dreissenid mussels become established. The two primary chemicals used for 
eradication are potash and copper-based algaecides such as EarthTec QZ from Earth 
Science Laboratories, Inc.  

 
Eradication using Potash.  
Potassium compounds are toxic to most bivalves, including dreissenids and corbiculids. 
Acute treatment of 100 mg/L for two days at an ambient temperature of 15°C resulted 
in 100% mortality of dreissenid adult mussels. In summary, an eradication treatment 
using potash would not impact fish and would have minimal impact on the drinking 
water produced from Lake Casitas.  Potash application will require additional approvals 
by the State. 

 
Eradication using Copper Based Products.  
Copper sulphate and the copper rich algaecide, Cutrine-Ultra® and EarthTec , have been 
reported to eliminate adult mussels while being used for algal control in various 
systems at levels of 30 to 50ppb as copper.  In August of 2013, EarthTec was granted 
federal EPA approval for use against Zebra and Quagga mussels. State labels have been 
granted in all 27 states that have dreissenid mussels, including California.  

 
Table 4.1 shows detailed mortality of adult Zebra mussels exposed to a copper rich 
algaecide EartchTec QC applied for a number of days. EarthTec is NSF-approved for 
drinking water and is frequently applied in potable water lakes, reservoirs and at the 
intake of water treatment plants for algae control. 

 
Dose as 
EarthTec 

Dose as 
element 

Mortality after: 
6 days 11 days 13 days 19 days 25 days 

3 ppm 150 ppb 100%     
            2 ppm 100 ppb 100%     

1 ppm 50 ppb 50% 100%    
 0.6 ppm 30 ppb 15% 55% 70% 80% pending 

 



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

8 
 

 
The District will need to consult and contract with a licensed aquatic pesticide applicator 
prior to the incident, and keep current with regulatory changes that may influence the 
success of eradication.  

F. Long Term Monitoring 

Should a dreissenid invasion occur, the monitoring program will be changed from current 
presence and absence detection to determining the level of infestation at different times of 
the year, the periods of reproduction and of settlement, and the periods of most and least 
intense infestation levels. Growth rates and longevities will also be part of the analyses. The 
monitoring program will be a combination of best available techniques and staff preference 
and availability. The following items will be part of the monitoring program: 

 
• Periods of settlement 
• Densities of larvae and adults 
• Maximum sizes and biomasses of adults 
• Development rates of larvae 
• Growth rates of adults 

 
The monitoring program will meet the California Fish and Game requirement for delineation of 
infestation, including both adult mussels and veligers.  Further assessment of the control and 
eradication results may cause a change to future control and eradication actions.  

  



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

9 
 

Management Staff Actions 

Response Team Meeting  

Once invasive mussels are verified as present in Lake Casitas and the appropriate Incident 
Command Center activated, management staff will conduct a Response Team meeting. 

A. The purpose of the Response Team meeting will be to initiate and coordinate the rapid 
response of Casitas departments, personnel and external agencies. This includes: 
 
1. Water Quality Department staff actions  
2. LCRA staff actions   
3. Public Information Office staff actions 
4. External agencies as deemed appropriate 
  

B. The Response Teammeeting will be coordinated by management staff and will include the 
following staff members (or designees): 

1. General Manager 
2. Water Quality Supervisor 
3. Park Services Manager 
4. Operations & Maintenance Manager 
5. Public Affairs-Resource Manager 
6.    Treatment Plant Supervisor 
7. Other staff members and agencies as may be appropriate 

 

C. Public outreach and education in relation to the invasive mussel incident will be conducted 
through the Public Affairs Manager in conformance with the ‘Casitas MWD Invasive Mussel 
Communication Plan’ located in Appendix B. 

D. Infrastructure Protection will be initiated in conformance with the ‘Infrastructure Protection 
Measures’ in Appendix C. 

D. Follow-up tactics meetings will be conducted as necessary to allow for the continued 
evaluation of rapid responses and to initiate possible changes in the response. This will be an 
essential function of the ICC. 

  



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

10 
 

APPENDIX A - CONTACT LIST 
 

California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife  

  

Eloise Tavares 
Environmental Scientist  
Quagga Liaison for Casitas   
 

562-342-7155 
 

Eloise.Tavares@wildlife.ca.gov 

Edward J. Hard, Chief 
Environmental Program 
Manager I (Managerial) M-10 
Aquatic Invasive Species Branch 
Division of Boating and 
Waterways 
California State Parks 
 
 
 
 

916.327.1865 Desk 
916.628.5495 Mobile  
 

One Capitol Mall, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
http://www.dbw.ca.gov/Envir
onmental/ 
edward.hard@parks.ca.gov 

Dominique Norton 
Senior Environmental Scientist 
(Specialist), Wildlife 
 

916-203-4499 
 

Dominique.Norton@wildlife.ca.gov 
 

D. Russell Black 
Environmental Scientist 
Reservoir Research Program 
South Coast Region 
Department of Fish and Wildlife 
 

Office (858) 467-4262 
Cell (858) 860- 4000 
  
 

 

John Obrien  
Senior Biologist 
 

(562)-370-8641 John.OBrien@wildlife.ca.gov.   
 

CalTip 24 hour hot line to report 
in progress violations 

1-800-334-2258  

Jim Snider, UC Davis Bodega Bay 
(send sample for identification 
overnight delivery) 

(707) 875-2066 
 

James.snider@wildlife.ca.gov 
Bodega Marine Lab 2099 
Westshore Rd. Bodega Bay, CA 
94923-0247 

 
Bureau of Reclamation 

  

Stacy Brown 
Land Use and Resource Planning 
Specialist 
Bureau of Reclamation  

 
559-487-5408 
 

South-Central California Area 
Office 
1243 N Street, Fresno, CA 
93721 

tel:(562)%20342-7155
tel:916.327.1865
tel:916.628.5495
http://www.dbw.ca.gov/Environmental/
http://www.dbw.ca.gov/Environmental/
mailto:edward.hard@parks.ca.gov
tel:(916)%20203-4499
mailto:Dominique.Norton@wildlife.ca.gov
tel:(858)%20467-4262
tel:(858)%20860-4000
mailto:John.OBrien@wildlife.ca.gov
mailto:James.snider@wildlife.ca.gov
tel:(559)%20487-5408


Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

11 
 

 sbrown@usbr.gov 
Michael Inthavong  
Land Use and Resources 
Planning Specialist, SCC-450 
 

559-487-5049 Bureau of Reclamation, South-
Central California Area Office 
1243 "N" St., Fresno, CA 93721 
 
 minthavong@usbr.gov 
 

Denise M. Hosler 
Environmental Applications and 
Research Group 
 

Phone: 303-445-
2195  Fax: 303-445-6328 
Cell: 303-250-9166 

Bureau of Reclamation, Denver 
Federal Center, Bldg. 56, Rm 
2010 
P.O. Box 25007  (86-68220) 
Denver, CO 80225-0007 
 
e-mail: Dhosler@usbr.gov 

QID (the private company we contract 
with that tracks quagga infestation in 
western USA ) 

  

Marshall Pike 
Vice President 
Business Development 
 

PH 530-529-1512 
CELL  530-949-9451 

www.quaggainspections.com<
http://www.quaggainspection
s.com/> 
 

Lake Piru (United Water 
Conversation District) 

  

Clayton W. Strahan Senior Park 
Service Officer 
Lake Piru Recreation Area 
 

O: (805) 317-
8990  C: (805) 625-4897 
 

Claytons@unitedwater.org 
 

Mauricio Guardado 
General Manager 

805-525-4431 mauricio@unitedwater.org 

Big Bear Lake (Big Bear 
Municipal Water District)  

  

Mike Stephenson 
General Manager 

909-866-5796 mstephenson@bbmwd.net 

California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife for in-progress violations  

 

CalTIP line  
1-888-334-2258, 24 hours a 
day, seven days a week. 

 

 

  

tel:(559)%20487-5049
https://maps.google.com/?q=1243+%22N%22+St.,+Fresno,+CA+93721559&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=1243+%22N%22+St.,+Fresno,+CA+93721559&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=1243+%22N%22+St.,+Fresno,+CA+93721559&entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:minthavong@usbr.gov
tel:(303)%20445-2195
tel:(303)%20445-2195
tel:(303)%20445-6328
tel:(303)%20250-9166
mailto:Dhosler@usbr.gov
tel:530-529-1512
tel:530-949-9451
http://www.quaggainspections.com/
http://www.quaggainspections.com/
http://www.quaggainspections.com/
http://www.quaggainspections.com/
http://www.quaggainspections.com/
tel:(805)%20317-8990
tel:(805)%20317-8990
tel:(805)%20625-4897
mailto:Claytons@unitedwater.org


Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

12 
 

APPENDIX B - COMMUNICATION PLAN 
 

 Introduction 
Benefits of an invasive mussel communication plan include providing consistent message to all 
agencies, partners, and the public, as well as keeping all stakeholders informed and educated on 
the invasive mussel incident and the ongoing management of them at Lake Casitas.  
 
Key Communication Goals: 

o Assure public of actionable efforts to maintain water quality and reliability; 
o Inform recreational boaters on restrictions and changes in procedures;  
o Provide required information and updates to regulators and outside agencies; 
o Inform staff of essential recreational and utility operational changes and concerns; 

 
Initial Action: 
 
Incident Briefing to Senior Management/Response Team Participants 
 
Discuss and identify all facts related to discovery.  Collect any visuals if possible for more effective 
communication (photographs/videos) 
 
Public Affairs Manager Initial Tasks: 
 

• Develop fact sheet that outlines what is currently known: 
o What was found? 
o When was it found? 
o Where was it found? 
o How was it found? 
o Why is it important? 
o What has been done? 
o What is being done now and by whom? 
o Who has been contacted? 
o Where can more information be found? 
o What will be done in the future? 

 
• Develop key messages to communicate to stakeholders: 

o Invasive mussels discovered at Lake Casitas 
o Casitas is implementing measures to protect water quality and reliability 
o Implementation of rapid response plan aimed at eradicating mussels 
o Immediate Restriction of all boats into the Lake Casitas Recreation area as well as 

onto Lake Casitas.  



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

13 
 

• Establish and maintain communications with key stakeholders: 
o Create talking points 
o Develop briefing statement  
o Issue news releases 
o Develop website landing page 
o Communicate on social media platforms 

 
Outreach to All Targeted Audiences 
 

• CMWD Utility and recreational customers of Casitas – Public Affairs Manager to post article 
on website and social media platforms. Recreational employee to post on recreation sites. 

 
• Board of Directors – General Manager - Send email to all board members explaining findings 

and actions 

• Casitas Employees – Public Affairs Manager - Send email to all employees explaining issue 

• Neighboring reservoirs/partnering agencies – Recreation Manager to call/email, list agencies 
such as boating organizations, concessionaires, businesses, government agencies, non-
profit organizations, special interest groups, other recreation and water agencies. 

• Regulators – who is to call/email, list persons to contact 
 

• News Media – Public Affairs Manager will send out press release to media list. Public Affairs 
Manager will follow up with calls/emails to reporters at the Ojai Valley News, Ventura 
County Star, KEYT TV, KVTA radio, and KCLU radio. 

 
General Public Outreach: Venue Specifics 
 
Casitas Website 
Description: Public Affairs Manager to create incident page at the top of the website, 
dedicated to providing up-to-date information about the invasive mussel status. 
 

Objective: To provide basic information about what Casitas is doing to address introduction of 
invasive mussels in the lake. 

 
Social Media 
Provide regular postings to include visuals on Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram. Develop incident 
hashtag (#) such as #QuaggaLakeCasitas. Monitor and respond to comments on a regular basis. 
 
Recreation Brochure 
Description: A brochure, created in-house, which includes information about boating requirements. 
 
Objective: To provide a brief easy-to-understand educational brochure about controlling invasive 
mussels in the Lake Casitas.  
  



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

14 
 

Ongoing Communications to all targeted audiences 
Continue to update targeted audiences on activities to eradicate mussels, changes in 
boating requirements, changes in cost and operational issues, and monitoring. 

o Develop temporary sign posting for Recreation 
o Provide handouts to vehicles entering Recreation 

Develop materials for outreach at community events (Ojai Day) 



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

15 
 

APPENDIX C - INFRASTRUCTURE PROTECTION MEASURES 

Overview: As concluded in the 2016 Lake Casitas Vulnerability Assessment, the introduction of 
dreissenid mussels into Casitas reservoir would also pose a significant risk to the dam intake 
structure and associated conveyance piping. Given the severity of the risk and in order to 
further develop readiness planning, Casitas operations staff have begun work on both 
identifying the specific assets at risk and evaluating the best available control methods for 
mitigating the impact on the critical infrastructure. 

Infrastructure Assessment: In addition to the intake structure and conveyance piping identified 
in the Vulnerability assessment, a follow-up assessment on the remaining Casitas treatment 
and distribution facilities was performed by operations staff. It was determined that the 
coagulant feed system, pre filter chlorination, and portions of the backwash reclaim system are 
also at risk. Post filter treatment facilities and the entire CMWD distribution system are 
considered to be adequately protected. (see attached risk matrix chart) 

Recommended Control Options: Based on a preliminary review of current facility operations, 
existing mussel data and research, water quality impacts and prospective cost effectiveness, 
the following were selected as potential control options. It should be noted that the below 
recommendations may be subject to change based on additional assessments and research. 

• Mechanical Cleaning – applicable to the intake screen and intake structure piping; 
inclusive of blasting and scraping the intake screens and pigging of the intake structure 
conveyance piping. 

• Foul Release Coatings – applicable to the intake screens; foul release coatings prevent 
and/or reduce the strength of mussel attachment. At the present time, non toxic 
silicone foul release coatings are the most promising. Considerable research has taken 
place over the past decade, including a comprehensive report prepared by the USBR 
titled “Coatings for Mussel Control from Six Years of Field Testing. 
http://www.usbr.gov/mussels/docs/MERL2014-64Coatings.pdf 

• Chemical Oxidation Treatment (Chlorination) – applicable to the intake structure and 
treatment plant conveyance piping; continuous or intermittent feed at an estimated 
dosage rate of .5 to 2.0 mg/l.  

• Chemical Oxidation Treatment (Potassium Permanganate) – applicable to the intake 
structure and treatment plant conveyance piping; continuous or intermittent feed at an 
estimated dosage rate of 1.0 to 2.0 mg/l.  

• Potassium (Potash) – applicable to the intake structure and treatment plant conveyance 
piping; as a “non pass through” treatment option. Existing research has demonstrated 
that a dosage rates of 100mg/l with a two day detention time is acutely lethal to 
mussels. 



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

16 
 

 

-------

Intake Structure and Treatment Facilities 

Lake Casitas Reservoir 

Intake Screens 

Intake Structure 

Treatment Filters 

Coagulant Feed System 

Pre Filter Disinfection 

Backwash Reclaim System 

Post Filter Disinfection (chlorine and ammonia) 

Corrosion Control Feed 

Distribution System 

                      Legend 

Infrastructure at Risk 

Infrastructure Protected 

 



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

17 
 

 

                                                                           APPENDIX D - MAPS 

 



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

18 
 

 

Lake Casitas  



Casitas MWD Quagga/Zebra Rapid Response Plan    DRAFT  11/17/2017 

19 
 

 

Matilija Reservoir 

 

 

 
Substrate Plates (monthly) 

Snorkel Survey (annual) 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2017\11-22-17\2017-10-31 Memo to GM - Final Sewer Study for LCRA.doc 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: TODD EVANS, ASSISTANT ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: SEWER STUDY FOR LAKE CASITAS RECREATIONAL  

DATE:  NOVEMBER 17, 2017 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors direct staff to begin discussions with Ojai 
Valley Sanitary District (OVSD) about a possible direct connect to OVSD collection 
system. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has long desired to connect the sewer system at the Lake Casitas 
Recreational Area into the Ojai Valley Sanitation District system. The District put out a 
Request For Qualifications (RFQ), conducted interviews and selected Hasan 
Consultants of Ventura to investigate this feasibility.  
 
Hasan Consultants were tasked with: assessing the current state of the existing sewer 
system, identifying alternative systems, identifying liabilities and benefits for the current 
system and the proposed alternatives, and preparing initial budgets for the alternatives. 
  
The report recommends a hybrid system that will improve public safety by 
reducing/eliminating truck trips outside of recreation area and reduce spiking at the 
waste treatment plant thereby benefiting both Casitas and OVSD.  The payback period 
for the hybrid system is between 8 and 19 years, depending on the option selected.  
None of the options provide for the replacement of the existing restrooms and holding 
tanks. 
 
Included with this memo is a copy of the Final Report for your review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 







































































































































































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 
SUBJECT: DISTRICT OFFICE LIGHTING REPLACEMENT, SPECIFICATION 17-396 
DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2017 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 
1. Accept the withdrawal of the bid proposal from Vitality Construction Inc due to an error 
 
2. Adopt the resolution accepting the proposal submitted by the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder and award the contract for the construction of the District Office Lighting 
Replacement, Specification 17-396 to Oilfield Electric Company in the amount of $103,900.00. 
  
3. Authorize the President of the Board to execute the agreement for said work and the Board 
authorize staff to proceed with the administration of the contract. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The T-12 florescent tubes used in some of the current office lights will no longer be available 
in the near future.  This project will replace the existing T-12 light fixtures with LED fixtures and 
automated controls.  The new system is designed to be in compliance with Title 24 
requirements.  The project also includes painting the ceiling tiles on the first (main) floor.  The 
bid proposal did include an alternate item to replace the ceiling tiles on the first floor.  The 
alternate item is not recommended due to the cost of the work. 
 
The project was advertised through F.W. Dodge and on the District’s web site.  Three firms 
completed a site visit.  Three firms submitted proposals.  The bid results are 
 

FIRM AMOUNT Alternate Bid Item 
Vitality Construction Inc $27,340.30 18,396.00 
Oilfield Electric $103,900.00 77,400.00 
Smith Electric Service $121,006.00 79,212.00 
 
Vitality Construction has requested that their bid be withdrawn.  Oilfield Electric Company has 
successfully completed several projects for Casitas.  Their contractor license is current and 
they are currently registered with DIR. The project is Categorically Exempt from CEQA under 
Section 15301(a).  The FY 2017-18 Capital Budget includes $150,000 to complete the 
replacement of this portion of the office lighting.    
 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
DISTRICT OFFICE LIGHTING REPLACEMENT 

SPECIFICATION 17-396 
 

WHEREAS, the District invited bids from qualified contractors for the above-referenced 
project, and 

 
WHEREAS, some of the lighting in the District Office is obsolete, and 

 
WHEREAS, the District received three bids, 
 
WHEREAS, the low apparent bidder, Vitality Construction Inc. has requested that their 

bid be withdrawn due to an error, 
 
WHEREAS, the second lowest bidder, Oilfield Electric Company, submitted a bid of 

$103,900.00. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District as follows: 

 
           1. Accept Vitality Construction Inc. request to withdraw their bid proposal. 
 

2. That the bid from Oilfield Electric Company in the amount of $103,900.00 be 
accepted to construct District Office Lighting Replacement, Specification 17-396  and a 
contract awarded.  
 

3. That staff is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the administration of 
the contract.  

 
 

ADOPTED this 22nd day of November, 2017. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Russ Baggerly, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Bill Hicks, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO APPROVE UP TO $100,000 IN 

ADDITIONAL ASPHALT PAVING WORK DURING FISCAL YEAR 2017-18  
DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2017 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to approve up to 
$100,000 in additional asphalt paving work during Fiscal Year 2017-18. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board of Directors awarded the annual paving project to BSN Construction, Inc. in the 
amount of $40,914 at the August 23, 2017 meeting.  At the September 27, 2017 meeting, the 
Board authorized an additional $60,000 in asphalt paving work. 
 
The request is for authorization for up to an additional $100,000, bringing the total potential 
contract amount to $200,914.  Even this may not be enough to cover all of the asphalt patch 
work required this year.  The original $40,914 project was to repair patches from leaks and to 
raise valve cans for work that had taken place to the legacy Casitas system over the previous 
6 months.  So far in FY 2017-18, there have been 11 asphalt patches (all but 1 included in the 
original contract) within the legacy Casitas system and 40 in the Ojai system.  There are an 
additional 2 known locations within the Ojai system that are likely to require asphalt patches.  
The cost for the patches that have been authorized so far this year is $99,004.43. 
 
With the acquisition of the Ojai system, Casitas has experienced an average of 2-3 leaks per 
week.  Each of the leak repairs requires timely asphalt patching.  While it is hoped that the 
frequency of the leaks and the subsequent need for asphalt repair will subside over the 7 
months remaining in FY 2017-18, the frequency may not subside.  Being able to move forward 
with the patches in a timely manner, with a minimum of delays and administration costs, while 
receiving a fair price for the asphalt work, is in the best interest of the rate paying public. 
 
$55,000 was included in the FY 2017-18 Budget for this work.  This estimate was based on 
previous year’s patching requirements before the acquisition of the Ojai system.  It is 
recommended that the portion of the work related to the Ojai System be included as part of 
the Community Facilities District 2013-01 (Ojai) bond proceeds. 
 
This project is Categorically Exempt from CEQA under Section 15301 (c). 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM: STEVEN E. WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
SUBJECT: ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING RECORDS RETENTION AND 

DESTRUCTION POLICY.  
DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2017 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors repeal Resolution No. 90-5 and adopt the 
Records Retention and Destruction Policy and attachments attached hereto as Exhibit A in 
order to comply with the government regulations now in effect. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
On January 10, 1990, by Resolution No. 90-5, the District approved a Records Retention 
Policy in accordance with guidelines prepared by the Association of California Water 
Agencies, the State Controller's Office and the Controller's Office Advisory Committee to 
regulate the retention and destruction of documents and files. Subsequently, on January 1, 
2005, significant amendments were made to Government Code sections covering those 
procedures for special districts becoming effective pursuant to Assembly Bill 474 ("AB 474"). 
 
In order to comply with the new regulations, the District has developed a new policy which has 
been reviewed by District Counsel and it is recommended that this new policy be adopted by 
the Board. 
 
It should be noted that only the first page of the Records Retention Schedule is included as an 
example in accordance with the recommendation of the Executive Committee at their meeting 
on November 14, 2017, due to the extremely large number of pages that comprise the actual 
Schedule.  Contact Rebekah Vieira if you desire to see the complete Records Retention 
Schedule. 
 
 
 



1 
 

 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

     RESOLUTION NO.         
 

RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 90-5 
AND ADOPTING A NEW 

RECORDS RETENTION & DESTRUCTION POLICY 
AND RETENTION SCHEDULE  

 
  
 WHEREAS, on January 10, 1990, the District approved Resolution No. 90-5 which 
adopted a Records Retention Policy in accordance with guidelines prepared by the Association 
of California Water Agencies, the State Controller's Office and the Controller's Office Advisory 
Committee to regulate the retention and destruction of documents and files, and 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 1, 2005, significant amendments to Government Code sections 
60201 and 60203, the sections that provide procedures for regulating the retention and 
destruction of records for special districts, became effective pursuant to Assembly Bill 474 ("AB 
474"), establishing new requirements for retaining and disposing of special district records; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Amended Code Section 60201 authorizes special districts to adopt a 
records retention schedule that complies with the Local Government Records Management 
Guidelines issued by the California Secretary of State pursuant to Code Section 12236; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has determined that it is necessary to update the previously 
adopted policy to comply with the California Secretary of State Local Government Records 
Management Guidelines, as required under AB 474; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has determined that the repeal of Resolution No. 90-5 and 
adoption of an updated Records Retention and Destruction Policy and Retention Schedule will 
enable the District to comply with the provisions of the amended Government Code Sections 
60201 through 60203, and 
 
 WHEREAS, any records destroyed pursuant to the District's new Records Retention 
and Destruction Policy and Records Retention Schedule will not adversely affect the District or 
the public. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District as follows: 
 
1. The Records Retention and Destruction Policy and attachments attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, are adopted as the policy of the Board of 
Directors. 
 
2. The records of the District are hereby authorized to be destroyed as provided by 
Sections 60200 through 60203 of the Government Code and in accordance with the Records 
Retention Schedule hereinabove referred to, including duplicate records. 
 



2 
 

3. The General Manager of the District and/or his/her designee is hereby authorized to 
implement the policy which is the subject of this resolution and additionally, is  authorized to 
add and incorporate additional series with appropriate retention and destruction designations 
as may become necessary in the future. 
 
4, Resolution No. 90-5 is hereby repealed. 

 
 

ADOPTED this                   day of                                        , 2017. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
President, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Secretary, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 



1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

RECORDS RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION POLICY 
 

 

I. PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this Records Retention and Destruction Policy is to: provide guidelines to staff 

regarding the retention or destruction of records of the Casitas Municipal Water District; 

provide for how records are to be identified, maintained, safeguarded, and destroyed; ensure 

records can be retrieved promptly and accurately; and ensure compliance with all applicable 

legal and regulatory requirements. 

 

 

II. DEFINITIONS 

 

A. “Destruction Date” shall mean the date after which the destruction of a Record 

may be authorized according to the provisions of this Policy. 

 

B. “District” shall mean the Casitas Municipal Water District. 

 

C. “District Records Retention Schedule” shall mean the schedule, attached to this 

Policy as Attachment A, setting forth how long the District’s various types of 

Records must be retained. 

 

D. “Permanent Record” shall mean any Record that may not be destroyed and 

must be retained indefinitely. 

 

E. “Record” shall mean any writing containing information relating to the conduct 

of the District prepared, owned, used, or retained by the District, regardless of its 

physical form or characteristics. 

 

F. “Records Retention Officer” or “Officer” shall mean the individual appointed 

by the District’s General Manager to implement and carry out this Policy. 

 

G. “Retention Period” shall mean the period of time for which a Record must be 

stored by the District pursuant to this Policy or State law. 

 

H. “Schedule” shall mean the District’s Records Retention Policy Schedule. 

 

I. “Series Code” shall mean the sequence of digits and numerals assigned to a 

Record or group of Records based on their characteristics. 

 

J. “Vault” shall mean the file storage area located in the basement of the District’s 

headquarters at 1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, California, 93001. 



2 

 

 

 

III. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

A. The District’s General Manager shall designate the Officer. 

 

B. The Officer shall be responsible for overseeing the implementation and ongoing 

administration of this policy. The Officer shall assist Staff in complying with the 

provisions of this Policy and the Schedule. The Officer shall ensure Staff is 

made aware of any updates or changes to this Policy or the Schedule. 

 

C. The Schedule, as it may be amended from time to time, is attached hereto as 

“Attachment A” and incorporated into this Policy by reference. 

 

D. The head of each Department shall designate one member of its Staff to 

periodically review the Department’s current records. The designated Staff 

member shall review their Department’s records at least once annually but not 

more frequently than every six months. 

 

E. The designated Staff member shall determine if a Record is current, should be 

stored, or should be destroyed. Current Records shall be retained by the 

Department. Records that are to be Stored shall be handled according to Section 

3 of this Policy. Records that are to be destroyed shall be handled according to 

Section 4 of this Policy.  

 

 

IV. RECORD STORAGE PROCEDURES 

 

A. Each Department shall be responsible for preparing any of its Records 

designated for storage in the following manner: 

 

1. Mark Records designated for storage with their Series Code and 

Destruction Date. 

 

2. Place Records designated for storage in banker file boxes; boxes shall 

measure 15” long, 12” wide, and 10” high; files shall be placed upright 

into boxes. 

 

3. Mark boxes containing Records designated for storage with the Series 

Codes and Destruction Dates of the Records contained therein; 

Destruction Dates shall be marked in red; permanent Records shall be 

marked in orange. 

 

4. Request Officer to designate a location in the Vault where the Records 

are to be stored prior to their being transferred to the Vault. 

 



3 

 

B. Records that are not currently in use shall be stored in the Vault.  With the 

permission of the Officer, Records may be stored at the District’s various 

satellite locations (e.g. Treatment Plant, Recreation Area, Pump Plants, etc.) 

where doing so furthers operational efficiency. 

 

C. All Records stored in the Vault shall be contained in banger file boxes or file 

cabinet drawers with their labeling clearly visible at all times. 

 

D. Each Department shall keep and regularly maintain a detailed inventory of 

Records stored in the Vault. This inventory shall include the Series Code, 

Destruction Date, and location of the Record within the Vault. 

 

 

V. RECORD DESTRUCTION PROCEDURES 
 

A. The District may destroy any original version of a Record without retaining a 

copy as long as the retention and destruction of the Record complies with this 

Policy and the Schedule, except where the retention of a Record is expressly 

required by State law. (Gov. Code § 60201) 

 

B. The District may destroy, at any time, rough drafts, notes, working papers 

(except for audits) that are not retained by the District in the ordinary course of 

business, including temporary or transitory documents used only for controlling 

the flow of work (e.g. "Post-it" notes) because such documents are not Records. 

 

C. The District shall not destroy any of the following records: 

 

1. Records relating to the formation, change of organization, or 

reorganization of the District; 

 

2. Ordinances, Resolutions and District Meeting Minutes; 

 

3. Records relating to any pending claim or litigation or any settlement or 

other disposition of litigation within the past two years; 

 

4. Records that are the subject of any pending request for records under the 

California Public Records Act, whether or not the record is exempt from 

disclosure, until the request has been fulfilled or denied.  Records shall 

be retained for the current year plus two (2) years after closure; 

 

5. Records relating to any pending construction that the District has not 

accepted or for which a stop notice claim may be legally presented; 

 

6. Records relating to any non-discharged debt of the District; 

 

7. Records relating to the title to real property in which the District has an 



4 

 

interest; 

 

8. Records relating to any non-discharged contract to which the District is a 

party; 

 

9. Records that have not fulfilled the administrative, fiscal, or legal purpose 

for which they were created or received; 

 

10. Unaccepted bids or proposals, which are less than two (2) years old, for 

the construction or installation of any building, structure or other public 

work; and 

 

11. Records less than the current year plus seven (7) years that specify the 

amount of compensation or expense reimbursement paid to District 

employees, officers, or independent contractors. 

 

(Gov. Code §§ 34090 & 60201) 

 

D. The District shall not destroy or otherwise disposed of any Record, unless it is 

determined that the Record has no further administrative, legal, or fiscal value 

and the Secretary of State has determined that the record is inappropriate for 

preservation in the State Archives. (Gov. Code § 14755, subd. (a).) 

 

E. The District shall not destroy or otherwise disposed of any Record that is the 

subject of an audit shall be destroyed until it has been determined that the audit 

has been performed. (Gov. Code § 14755, subd. (b).) 

 

F. The District shall not destroy or otherwise disposed of any Record that is part of 

an agency rulemaking file subject to Gov. Code § 11347.3. (Gov. Code § 14755, 

subd. (c).) 

 

G. The District shall retain General Ledgers for a minimum of four (4) years after 

completion of any annual audit. (Code of Civ. Pro. § 337.)  Published articles 

show retention periods of four (4) to seven (7) years as typical. The Secretary of 

State recommends that general ledgers be permanently retained. (Sec. of State 

Local Gov't. Records Mgmt. Guidelines; Gov. Code § 3409(1).) 

 

H. The District shall retain original source documents that are detailed in a register, 

journal, ledger or statement until audited plus five (5) years. Certain source 

documents may be retained for a shorter period of time. Refer to the Records 

Retention Schedule for specific accounting documents. 

 

I. Each Department shall be responsible for preparing any of its Records 

designated for destruction in the following manner: 

 

1. Prepare a “List of Obsolete Records for Destruction” according to the 



5 

 

example attached to this Policy as “Attachment B.” 

 

2. Prepare a “Records Destruction Form” using the form attached to this 

policy as “Attachment C.” 

 

3. The “List of Obsolete Records for Destruction” and “Records 

Destruction Form” shall be reviewed and approved by the Department 

Head and then submitted to the Officer. 

 

J. The Officer shall review the “List of Obsolete Records for Destruction” and 

“Records Destruction Form” and verify that the listed Records: (1) are not 

required to be permanently retained; (2) have been retained for the legally 

required period of time; and (3) have been reproduced pursuant to any applicable 

requirements (i.e., imaging, etc.). 

 

K. The Officer shall return any Records that do not satisfy the criteria for 

destruction set out in this Policy to their respective Department for further 

evaluation and processing. 

 

L. The Officer shall approve the destruction of any Record that meets the criteria 

for destruction set out in this Policy. 

 

M. The Officer shall determine the means by which Records shall be destroyed. 

When determining the means of destruction, the Officer shall choose the most 

cost-effective means of destruction unless this Policy, the Schedule, or State law 

prescribes a specific means of destruction for a particular type of Record. 

 

N. The Officer or a Designee of the Officer shall oversee the destruction of all 

Records and then sign the Records Destruction Form to verify witnessing the 

destruction of the Records. The original Records Destruction Form shall be 

retained by the Officer and a copy shall be retained by the Department to which 

the Records belonged. 

 

VI. OTHER GUIDELINES 

 

 A. Accounting Records (May include, but not be limited to the following:) 

 

  1. Source Documents, including: 

   Invoices 

   Warrants 

   Vouchers 

   Requisitions/Purchase Orders (attached to invoices) 

   Cash Receipts 

   Claims 

   Bank Statements 

   Bank Deposits 



6 

 

   Checks 

   Bills 

 Various accounting authorizations taken from District minutes, 

resolutions or contracts 

 

  2. Journals, including: 

   Cash Receipts 

   Accounts Receivable or Payable Register 

   Check or Warrant Register 

   General Journal 

   Payroll Journal 

 

  3. Ledgers, including: 

   Expenditure 

   Revenue 

   Accounts Payable or Receivable Ledger 

   Assets/Depreciation 

   Warrants Payable 

   Construction 

   General Ledger 

 

  4. Trial Balance 

 

  5. Adjusting Entries 

 

  6. Statements (Interim or Certified - Individual or All Fund), including: 

   Balance Sheet 

   Analysis of Changes in Available Fund Balance 

   Cash Receipts and Disbursements 

   Inventory of Fixed Assets (Purchasing) 

 

  7. Journal Entries 

 

  8. Reversing Entries 

 

  9. Payroll and Personnel Records, including: 

   Accident reports, injury claims and settlements 

   Applications, changes or terminations of employees 

   Earnings records and summaries 

   Fidelity bonds 

   Garnishments 

   Insurance records of employees 

   Job descriptions 

   Medical histories 

   Retirements 

   Time cards 



7 

 

 

  10. Other 

   Inventory Records (Purchasing) 

   Capital Asset Records (Purchasing) 

   Depreciation Schedule 

   Cost Accounting Records 

   

 B. Payroll Records, including: 

 

  1. Accident reports, injury claims and settlements 

 

  2. Medical histories 

 

  3. Injury frequency charts 

 

 4. Applications, changes and terminations of employees Insurance records 

of employees 

 

  5. Time cards 

 

  6. Job descriptions 

 

  7. Performance or rating documents 

   

  8. Earning records and summaries 

 

 9. Records specifying amounts of compensation or expense reimbursement 

paid to District employees, officers, or independent contractors must be 

retained for seven (7) years after date of payment. (Gov. Code § 60201). 

  

 

 
G:\ENGR.WKS\CAROLE\RecordsRetention\CMWD Policy Docs\CMWD PolicyDraft 2.docx 

 



11/15/2017 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT - RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE

Legend:

Series Code Series Name Description of Documents, As Needed Office of Record Official Record 
Retention

Citation/Legal Basis/Rationale

ACC100.1 Accounts Payable Records documenting payment required to be made for goods and services. May 
include claims, credit card transactions, invoices, petty cash records, refunds, 
vouchers and warrants.

Accounting 
Manager

CY+7 GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum,  CCP 337; Statute of limitations, State of California 
Guidelines; 4 years after audit for account postings and supporting documents; 2 years after 
audit for journal entries,
CMWD - Best Practice - Maintain records for Current Year plus 7 based on IRS 
guidelines and recordkeeping consistency. 

ACC100.2 Bank Check Lists Check lists for audit and those included in Board Packets Accounting 
Manager, 
Executive 
Administrator 
(Board)

CY+10
P for Board 

Packet

 GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum CCP 337; Statute of limitations
State of California Guidelines; 5 years after audit for checks, Administrative Decision.
CMWD  - Best Practice - Maintain for the Current Year plus 10 years for recordkeeping 
consistency. - Lists included with Board Packet - Permanent.

ACC100.3 1099 Non Incorporated Outside Consultants Accounting 
Manager

CY+7  GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum, 29 USC 436; 5 years
26 CFR 31.6001; 4 years after tax return is filed R&T 19530; 3 years after tax return is filed, 
29 CFR 516.2-6; Maintain at least 3 years, State of California Guidelines; 4 years after audit.
CMWD - Best Practice - Maintain records for Current Year plus 7 based on IRS 
guidelines and recordkeeping consistency.

ACC100.4 Banking - Cash Disbursements Audit 
Trail and Updates

Records documenting transactions with an outside financing institution. May include 
statements, reconciliations, deposit slips, canceled checks for minor transactions, 
negotiated checks, returned checks and check registers. Includes journal entries and 
subsidiary ledgers.

Accounting 
Manager 

CY+7  GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum CCP 337; Statute of limitations
State of California Guidelines; 4 years after audit for account postings and supporting 
documents; 2 years after audit for journal entries.
CMWD - Best Practice - Maintain records for Current Year plus 7 based on IRS 
guidelines and recordkeeping consistency.

ACC100.5 Claims By/Against the District Claims paid or denied Accounting 
Manager, 
Executive 
Administrator 
(Management)

CL+7 GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum
42 USC 1983; Definitions, GC 25105.5; 5 years after closure/completion, 29 USC 1113; 6 
years after date of last action, or 3 years after plaintiff had knowledge of breach or violation, 
whichever comes first, GC 910 - 913; 6 months to 1 year after event occurs. State of California 
Guideline; 5 years after settlement or closure.
CMWD - Best Practice - CL+7 years.

ACC100.6 Dues and Subscriptions,  Professional 
Associations and Organizations

Dues and Subscriptions Accounting 
Manager and 
Departments

CU+2 GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum

ACC100.7 Temporary Employment Agencies Temporary Employment Agency Records Accounting 
Manager and
HMR 

ACT + 3 No retention citation. Keep while active.
CMWD Best Practice -: Maintain 3 years after completion of use of services.

ACC200.1 Accounts Receivable Records documenting payment received for goods and services provided by the 
District. May include collection notices & records, credit advices, credit card 
charges, receipts and uncollected account records.  May also include daily deposit, 
daily balance and balance sheets.

Accounting 
Manager and 
Recreation

FY+7 GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum CCP 337; Statute of limitations
State of California Guidelines; 4 years after audit for account postings and supporting 
documents; 2 years after audit for journal entries.
CMWD - Best Practice - Maintain records for Fiscal Year+7 based on IRS guidelines and 
recordkeeping consistency. 

ACC200.2 Utility Billing Records documenting customer water usage and charges therefor. Accounting 
Manager

CY+7 GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum CCP 337; Statute of limitations
State of California Guidelines; 4 years after audit for account postings and supporting 
documents; 2 years after audit for journal entries.
CMWD - CY+7 years for recordkeeping consistency.

ACC200.3 Bills Payables Accounting 
Manager

CY+7 GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum, State of California Guidelines; 2 years After Audit for 
billing records.
CMWD - CY+7 years for recordkeeping consistency.

ACCOUNTING (ACC)

AA - After Audit Settled,   ACT - While Active,   AE - After Expiration,   AFP - After Final Payment,   AP - After Approval,   C - Confidential, CL - Closed/Completed (After final resolution. When no further action pending or 
required), CR - Creation (of the record) Date, CU - Current, CY - Current Year,   EY - Event Year,  GC - Government Code, H - Historical , IND - Indefinite,   L - Life of Entity/Equipment, P - Permanent,  R - Review, S - 
Superseded, T - Termination (Employment or Contract), V - Vital,   +[Number] - Plus Years



G:\ENGR.WKS\CAROLE\RecordsRetention\ExampleOfhreddingRecord - 2016.xlsx

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT - RECORD OF DOCUMENTS DESTRUCTION EXAMPLE
Legend:

Series Code Series Name Description of Documents, As Needed Office of Record Official 
Record 

Citation/Legal Basis/Rationale

CON100.1 Backflow Records for Testing and Maintenance of Backlow 
Preventers

Conservation CY+3 CCR Title 17 Section 7605(f)

Type Dates Covered Description of Documents, As Needed Office of 
Record

Destroy 
Date Method of Destruction Year Destroyed

Docs 1974-1979 Testing records and correspondence Conservation 1983 Onsite Outside Confidential Shredding 2016

Docs 1988-2002 Testing records and correspondence Conservation 2006 Onsite Outside Confidential Shredding 2016

2002-2008 Testing records and correspondence Conservation 2012 Onsite Outside Confidential Shredding 2016

Docs 1974-1977 Work Order Requests Completed - County Billing Conservation 1981 Onsite Outside Confidential Shredding 2016

Docs 1981-1984 Work Order Requests Completed - County Billing Conservation 1988 Onsite Outside Confidential Shredding 2016

List 1978-1985 List of Devices Required to be Tested Conservation 1989 Onsite Outside Confidential Shredding 2016

AA - After Audit Settled,   ACT - While Active,   AE - After Expiration,   AFP - After Final Payment,   AP - After Approval,   C - 
Confidential, CL - Closed/Completed (After final resolution. When no further action pending or required), CR - Creation (of the record) 
Date, CU - Current, CY - Current Year,   EY - Event Year,  GC - Government Code, H - Historical , IND - Indefinite,   L - Life of 
Entity/Equipment, P - Permanent,  R - Review, S - Superseded, T - Termination (Employment or Contract), V - Vital,   +[Number] - Plus 
Years

CONSERVATION (CON)

* Permanent for engineering records, drawings, and other supporting data for 
proposed or as-constructed utility facilities: Maps, diagrams, profiles, 
photographs, field survey notes, plot plan, detail drawings, records of 
engineering studies, and similar records showing the location of proposed or as- 
constructed facilities: 18 CFR 125.3; Life of facility plus 5 years
GC 34090(a) & 60201(d)(8); Permanent for documents relating to title to real 
property
State of California Guidelines; Termination of the facility plus 2 years, 
Permanent for capital improvement construction documentation.

* Maintenance and operation documents, including work orders 
authorizing expenditures:
18 CFR 125.3; 5 years
GC 34090 & 60201; 2 year minimum State of California Guidelines; 
Current year plus 2 years for maintenance & operations records.



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
RECORDS DESTRUCTION FORM

CONTACT
Department Contact Person Telephone/E-mail Date

APPROVALS
Position Title Signature Date

Records Retention Officer (Name) Signature Date

LIST OF RECORDS TO BE DESTROYED

See attached Number of Sheets - 
DESTRUCTION COMPLETED BY

Date

DESTRUCTION VERIFIED BY
Position Title Signature Date

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING FORM
1.  Contact - Person coordinating lists of documents for destruction.
2.  Department Approval - Head of the Department.
3.  List of Records to be Destroyed - Must be prepared in approved format.  Coordinate with Records Retention Officer.
4.  Method of Destruction - Paper records by onsite confidential shredding.  Digital and other media to be determined and approved.
5.  Destruction Completed By - Name and details of person who performed task or name of third party company with documentation.
6.  Destruction Verified By - Name and details of person who observed destruction of documents.
7.  Retain copy of form for department records.

Method

Records Retention Officer

Department Approval (Name)

Final Approval

Name

Company Name



 
 

1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  October 30, 2017  
 
TO:  Recreation Committee  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for September 2017  
 
Visitation Numbers 
 
The following is a comparison of visitations* for September 2017:   
 

 Sept. 2017 Sept. 2016 August 2017 
Visitor Days 50,172 56,768 75,292 
Camps 5,787 5,331 9,834 
Cars 12,543 14,192 18,823 
Boats 94 154 168 
Kayaks & Canoes 6 20 5 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2016/2017 276,166 
2017/2018 260,064 
% Change -5.831 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   
Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + 
campsites occupied +extra vehicles X 4 
Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 
Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 
Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 
Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 
Boating and Operations  
There were six cables sold for new inspections, three vessels were re-inspected, and a total of 446 
vessels were retagged in September.  Seven vessels failed the first inspection in September 2017. Santa 
Ana Launch Ramp ceased operation after the water level decreased and Old Coyote was reactivated 
and is now in use.  
 
The Casitas Water Adventure hosted a splash-in movie with great success. The movie Goonies was 
screened and 409 participants cane to enjoy the free movie in the water play structre. We will schedule 
more next season, as this was a welcomed popular event. The Ojai Cross Country Invational was held 
on September 16, staff participated in lifeguard training waterfront in the lake on September 21, a 
fund-raiser Duck Race was held in the Lazy River and the annual disc golf trournament Coyote Classic 
was held September 29, 30 and October 1st.  
 
Incidents 
There were 24 calls for service from the public and 166 staff observations of violations where the park 



 
 

2 

staff made customer contact. Four medical responses, four incidents required response from Ventura 
County Sheriff Office; an assault with a deadly weapon, shots heard, property damage and a 
distrubance resulting in remaoval from the park by VCSO. There were 182 disturbances, 15 unattended 
fires, 1 boating violations, 12 leash law violations, 42 traffic violations, 10 parking violations, and zero 
body contacts in Lake Casitas.  
 
Revenue Reporting 
The 2017/2018 unaudited monthly figures below available to date illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area’s revenue collected in the respective months (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per 
the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance Manager.    
 

$0.00
$100,000.00
$200,000.00
$300,000.00
$400,000.00
$500,000.00
$600,000.00
$700,000.00
$800,000.00
$900,000.00

July

Se
ptember

FY 16/17
FY 17/18

 
 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 
    

 
 
 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Recreation Committee 

 
DATE:   November 17, 2017 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum 
Re:   Committee Meeting of November 6, 2017 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Bill Hicks 
Director Pete Kaiser  

 Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  
 Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
 Joe Evans, Division Officer  
  
 Public: Dee Bennett 
 

2. Public Comments.    
Dee Bennett provided an update on the recent successes by the Lake Casitas Rowing Club and 
grants being issued to the Club from the 1984 Olympics. 
 

3. Board/Management Comments. 
Director Hicks commented that the residents in the Seacliff community are actively conserving 
water.  Director Kaiser commented that staff appears to be keeping up with park maintenance.  
Joe Evans commented that Park Ranger staff are being assigned areas of the park to solve 
logistical problems that were recognized during the past summer.  
 

4. Ojai Wine Festival Five Year Contract Agreement. 
The General Manager asked the Committee if there were further questions regarding the contract. 
 Staff had responded to the question of insurance coverage.  No further questions from the 
Committee. 
 

5. September 2017 Recreation Area Report. 
Carol Belser and Committee reviewed the report.  Move the report to Board information. 
 

6. Discussion regarding the LCRA Sewer Study.  
The General Manager presented an overview of the consultant’s study to consider the extension 
of a sewer lateral to the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  The study provided a preliminary look at 
alignments, benefits, options, and project costs.  The sewer lateral extension may be considered 
in future budget preparations.  The Committee suggested moving this item to the Board as an 
informational presentation.  
 

7. Review of Incidents and Comments. 
Joe Evans updated the Committee on the customer interactions. 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Quagga Mussel Committee 

 
DATE:   November 17, 2017 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum 
Re:   Committee Meeting of November 13, 2017 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Russ Baggerly 
Director Pete Kaiser  

 Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  
 Michael Flood, Assistant General Manager 
 Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
 Joe Evans, Division Officer  
 Susan McMahon, Laboratory Supervisor 
 

2. Public Comments.   None. 
 

3. Board/Management Comments. 
Director Kaiser commented that fisheries staff should look upstream of Robles Diversion for 
presence/absence of mussels. 
 
Director Baggerly asked for an update on the Matilija HoBo project and the status of ordering the 
cross-polarization microscope for the lab. 
 

4. General Manager Comments, 
The General Manager informed the Committee that Fisheries staff do note any mussel or other 
unusual aquatics discovered during their field work – such as their discovery of New Zealand mud 
snails at the North Fork Matilija gaging station.  The HoBo permit is in Forest Service process and 
calls have been made to progress the permit. Jordan Kear is continuing to perform quarterly 
measurements at the spring sites.  Michael Flood commented that the microscope is being 
ordered. 
 

5. Update on Public records Act request sent to United Water Conservation District. 
Director Baggerly reported that United is working on the request. 
 

6. Discussion regarding interagency coordination concerning quagga mussel monitoring and 
containment. 
The Committee discussed the need for interagency cooperation regarding the protection of the 
Ventura River system.  Specific note of importance is the discovery of New Zealand mud snails in 
North Fork Matilija Creek and the undetermined method of transport to this watershed.  The 
Committee discussed need for cooperation with the Ventura County Public Works and Watershed 
Protection District to decontaminate equipment and boots that could transport mussels from the 
Santa Clara River to the Ventura River Watershed.  The General Manager will make contacts with 



 2 

Ventura County to ask for this cooperation. 
 

7. Discussion regarding the Report of Adult Quagga Mussels discovered in Lower Piru Creek. 
The Committee discussed concerns of adult quagga mussels beginning to inhabit the Santa Clara 
River and possibly beyond. 
 

8. Update on the Casitas Rapid Response Plan. 
Staff presented their progress to prepare the Rapid Response Plan.  The General Manager 
explained that the Plan will be incorporated into and implemented in accordance with the District’s 
Emergency Response Plan.  The Committee was made aware of the two directions that staff are 
considering for the permitting of the aquatic pesticide.  This work is in progress and being 
conducted by Susan McMahon.  The Committee suggested that Susan McMahon get in contact 
with the environmental staff of United Water Conservation District to learn what they have 
developed and the direction they are moving toward. 
 
Carol Belser is desiring to share the draft plan with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
during a December 13th conference in Bakersfield. 
 
The Committee was informed that staff will work towards a draft to present to the Board at their 
November 22nd meeting. 
 

9. Discussion concerning actions by Western Governor’s request for Federal Assistance to 
fight quagga and zebra mussels. 
The Committee suggested contacting the California Governor’s office to determine if they are 
actively coordinating with other western states.  The General Manager will call the Natural 
Resources office. 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

Minutes 
Executive Committee 

 
DATE:  November 14, 2017 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Committee Meeting of November 14, 2017 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.       

Director Russ Baggerly 
Director Jim Word 
Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
Michael Flood, Assistant General Manager 

 Rebekah Vieira, Executive Administrator 
 
2. Public Comments.  None. 

 
3. Board Manager comments.    

Director Baggerly commented on the Ventura Star’s water article posted November 13, 
2017, regarding the horizontal bore water supply.  
 

4. General Manager comments.  
The General Manager reported that he will consider the review and comments for the 
County General Plan, Water Resources section. 
 

5. Review of the draft Records Retention Policy.  
Rebekah Vieira presented the draft Policy to the Committee. The current policy was 
drafted in 1990 and the proposed Policy will bring the District to appropriate compliance.  
 
The Policy has been under development and review by legal counsel during the past 
year.  Each department of the District has had input to the type of records that are 
developed and retained.  The Policy provides the legal citing or the proposed best 
practice guidelines for retention and destruction of documents.  Director Word pointed 
out that there will need to be an assignment of responsibility to staff for complying with 
the policy and setting time certain for accomplishing the review of documents.     
 
The Committee discussed the protections and concerns over electronic server and cloud 
based handling of documents.  Director Baggerly asked for more information regarding 
electronic document securities. 
 
There is not a legislative draft for the policy changes, as the new Policy will replace the 
1990 policy in its entirety, recognized by Director Baggerly.  This item will be moved to 
the Board for further consideration.  

 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

Minutes 
Personnel Committee 

 
DATE:  November 17, 2017 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  Executive Administrator, Rebekah Vieira 
RE:  Committee Meeting of November 14, 2017 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.       

Director Mary Bergen 
Director Bill Hicks 
Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
Michael Flood, Assistant General Manager 
Rebekah Vieira, Assistant to GM/Clerk of the Board 
Chelbi Kelley, Accounting Technician 

 
2. Public Comments.   

None 
 

3. Board/Manager comments.    
Director Hicks mentioned there was a nice article in the paper and then commented 
about a temporary meter being used at the fire station. 

 
4. Discussion regarding recruitments. 

The O & M Manager position is being filled by Michael Shields.  A Distribution Worker 
and Utility Worker will begin in December.  Watershed Coordinator Interviews are being 
conducted on Thursday. Candidates are being reviewed for the HR Manager position.  
Recruitment is underway for the E & M position.  We are in discussions for the Treatment 
Plant Operator position.  We are receiving applications for the Rangers. The Principle 
Civil Engineer position will be opened as Neil Cole has provided us with his retirement 
date in January.  The Water Quality position has not been opened yet as the job 
description is still being revised. 

 
5. Discussion regarding the hiring of a relative of a current full time employee. 

The committee was apprised of the desire of staff to hire a relative of a current full time 
employee and per policy and practice is bringing this forward to the board for 
authorization.  The Committee was not supportive of this request and offered strong 
concerns on the hiring of relatives and requested that a more stringent anti-nepotism 
policy be drafted for the board’s consideration.  Based on the lack of support by the 
committee this item is not moving forward to the Board and the candidate was notified. 
 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:47 p.m. 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Finance Committee 

 
DATE:    November 17, 2017 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:    Finance Committee Meeting of November 17, 2017, at 1000 hours. 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Peter Kaiser and Director Jim Word 
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Assistant General Manager, Michael Flood 
 Accounting Manager/Treasurer, Denise Collin 

 
2. Public Comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. 

Denise Collin informed the Committee of the progress to bill Ojai customers.  Staff have received 
and answered many questions.  The first meter reading and data download from the AMR system 
went very well.  Payments are being received and the AutoPay system is available to all 
customers.  In general, customers have expressed being appreciative of the transition to Casitas. 

 
4. Discussion regarding the final Golden State Water bill in the amount of $442.91 for Dr. 

Robert Feiss.  
Dr. Feiss was informed of the meeting date and time, but did not attend.  The Committee was 
unsure of Dr. Feiss’ request of Casitas and discussed the point that outstanding water bills issued 
by Golden State Water Company were transferred to Casitas for collection.  It was noted that Dr. 
Feiss did pay the bill to Casitas. No further discussion by the Committee.   
 

5. Review of the Financial Statements for September 2017.  
The Committee reviewed the financial statement with no critical changes or issues.  Denise Collin 
explained the breakout of revenue received from the Ojai water system and discussed the 
variables of meter readings during the initial stage of the transition.  Denise Collin stated that 
there is an additional $62,000 from Morgan Stanley Investments that came to the District just 
after posting of the financial statement.  Director Word asked about Outside Contracts that were 
elevated in the Water Conservation and Engineering section.  Each increase was explained.  
Denise Collin will look at Animal Permits revenue that seems higher than in past years. 

 
6. Review of the September 2017 Consumption Report. 

The Committee commented on the breakout of the Ojai system water demand numbers.  
 



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

11/15/17

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGZW8 10/25/2024 $833,918 $808,462 2.014% 10/25/2016 3.89% 2500

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 31331VWN2 4/13/2026 $908,546 $867,238 1.901% 5/9/2016 4.17% 3028

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $852,696 $823,864 2.790% 3/28/2016 3.96% 2994

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,013,979 $992,640 3.000% 3/24/2016 4.78% 3323

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGWD 9/29/2027 $694,629 $671,717 2.354% 11/17/2016 3.23% 3554

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A3DL 9/8/2023 $1,573,999 $1,509,945 1.486% 10/13/2016 7.27% 2093

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,360,527 $1,348,488 1.625% 10/3/2012 6.49% 569

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A0EN 12/10/2021 $535,055 $516,010 1.107% 5/9/2016 2.48% 1465

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $763,596 $733,504 2.875% 2/19/2016 3.53% 2728

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313383YJ4 9/8/2023 $465,443 $440,004 1.203% 7/14/2016 2.12% 2093

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5VW6 7/10/2025 $1,023,664 $1,014,150 2.360% 5/10/2017 4.88% 2755

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130AIXJ2 6/14/2024 $926,099 $872,091 2.875% 8/2/2016 4.20% 2369

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF 6/11/2021 $640,521 $631,187 5.625% 1/16/2013 3.04% 1286

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA 11/17/2017 $1,000,104 $1,000,220 5.125% 1/3/2012 4.81% 2

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB 1/13/2022 $674,533 $672,964 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.24% 1498

*TB Federal National Assn 31315P2J7 5/1/2024 $794,689 $766,905 1.721% 5/1/2016 3.69% 2326

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ZR 9/6/2024 $1,472,460 $1,419,678 2.625% 5/25/2016 6.83% 2451

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0K3 4/24/2026 $2,528,443 $2,429,050 2.125% 5/25/2016 11.69% 3039

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE1 7/15/2018 $1,145,313 $1,156,176 1.375% 7/6/2010 5.56% 240

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF 1/15/2020 $1,146,083 $1,172,701 1.375% 11/18/2015 5.64% 780

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE 11/15/2023 $768,209 $789,832 2.750% 12/13/2013 3.80% 2160

Accrued Interest $146,271

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $21,122,506 $20,783,096 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $452 $452 1.07% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,879 $2,879 0.93% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $21,125,837 $20,786,427 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $21,126,687 $20,797,263

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $19,392,286 $19,073,403

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $443,569 $443,569

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $22,486 $22,486 0.19%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $21,591,891 $21,252,482

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $24,661,218 $24,308,357

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	11-22-17 Agenda
	11-08-17 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	November 8, 2017

	Bills
	Rapid Response Plan Memo 11 17 17
	MEMORANDUM

	CMWD.Rapid.Response.Plan  11 17 2017
	APPENDIX B - COMMUNICATION PLAN
	Introduction
	General Public Outreach: Venue Specifics
	Casitas Website

	Description: Public Affairs Manager to create incident page at the top of the website, dedicated to providing up-to-date information about the invasive mussel status.
	Recreation Brochure

	Ongoing Communications to all targeted audiences
	Continue to update targeted audiences on activities to eradicate mussels, changes in boating requirements, changes in cost and operational issues, and monitoring.
	o Develop temporary sign posting for Recreation
	o Provide handouts to vehicles entering Recreation

	2017-10-31 Memo to GM - Final Sewer Study for LCRA
	LCRA Sewer Feasibilty Study 2017
	Memo Lighting
	Resolution Lighting
	Additional asphalt paving-part 2
	RecordsRetentionBoardRecmdMemo-111517
	RecordsRetentionPackage-111517
	AccountingSchedule-Page 1
	ACC

	DestructionCertificateForm - 013117
	Sheet1


	Rec Area Report 09.September.2017
	Rec Minutes 11 06 2017
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Quagga Minutes 11 13 2017
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Executive Minutes 11 14 2017
	Personnel Minutes 11 14 2017
	Fin Minutes 11 17 2017
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Investment Report 11-15-17

